
  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

Agenda 
 

The July 2019 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District will be held will 

be held on Thursday July 18, 2019 at 6:00 pm at the Van Etten Village Office, 6 Gee Street, 
Van Etten, NY  14889. The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you are unable to attend, 
please inform Ms. Kappanadze  (607-259-2646), Mrs. Santulli (733-8607), or Mr. Shaw (733-8611).   

 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Approval of minutes (document #2019-37)   
4.  Treasurer’s report 
 a) Financial report (document 2019-38)  
 b) Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document 2019-39)  
5.  Correspondence  
6.  President’s report  
7.  Director’s Report 

Consent Item: Approval of Personnel Actions for June (Appendix C).  
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve Personnel actions as submitted. 
Consent Item: Approval of change to Teen Computer Policy.  
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the change to computer policy as submitted.  

8.  Committee reports:   
a)  Executive Committee (Kappanadze)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2019-40) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Schamel) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2019-41)  
Consent Item: Approval of CCLD 2020 Budget.  
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the CCLD 2020 Budget as submitted. 

 c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Schwesinger) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2019-42) 

 d) Personnel Committee (Dworkin)  
 e) Election and Continuity Committee (Rogan) 
 f) Advocacy Committee  
9. Executive Session 
10.  Old business     
11.  New business 
12.  Period for public expression  
13.  Adjournment  
 



(Minutes of the JUNE 20, 2019 meeting of the Chemung County Library District Board of Trustees. 
Document #2019-37)  
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00pm by President Marge Kappanadze. Present were [see sign-in 
sheet] Excused were Bonnie Chollet and Jessica Roberts.  Also present were [new board members], and 
Ron Shaw from the Library District’s Administration.  
 
Motion to amend agenda: Ms. Smith moved a motion to amend the June 2019 meeting agenda, which 
referenced the May 2019 board meeting and personnel actions instead of the June 2019 board meeting 
and personnel actions.  Ms. Hayes seconded the motion. VOTE:  Unanimously Approved.  
 
Minutes: The minutes of the May 2019 meeting (Document #2019-31) were presented for board 
review. Vote to accept the minutes as presented in writing.  VOTE:  Unanimously Approved.  
 
Financial Report. The May 31, 2019 Financial Report (Document #2019-32) was presented for board 
review. Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. Hayes, to accept the Financial Report dated 5/31/19 as 
presented in writing. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Report of Unpaid Bills (Document #2019-33). Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. Dworkin, that 
the board authorize the payment of the unpaid bills dated 6/11/19 for the General Fund - $45,060.21as 
distributed in writing. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Correspondence.  Mr. Shaw reported that the Junior League of Greater Elmira-Corning expressed 
thanks to the Horseheads Library for its help with the Diaper Drive; that the pre-kindergarten program 
at St. Mary Our Mother Catholic Church, Horseheads, sent a thank-you card to the Bookmobile; and 
that a picture of the Bookmobile was included in the recently published Chemung County Head Start 
booklet. 
 
President’s Report.  President Kappanadze presented the following item: 
 
CONSENT ITEM: Memorandum of Agreement regarding Holidays.  Resolved by Ms. Dworkin, seconded by 
Ms. Hayes that the CCLD Board of Trustees approves to approve the MOA as submitted. VOTE: Unanimously 
Approved.  
 
Director’s Report.  Mr. Shaw reported that the Big Flats Library’s float took first place in the annual 
Big Flats parade, which went on in spite of pouring rain. 
 
Mr. Shaw reported that he has contacted F.A.S.T. to get an estimate for additional security cameras at 
Steele, as well as repositioning existing ones.  
 
Mr. Shaw met with Michael Collins, the Elmira City Manager, to discuss concerns about the 
promenade next to Steele.  Mr. Shaw gave Mr. Collins information from library staff and patrons 
regarding incidents on the promenade, and spoke of the need for a police presence.  Mr. Shaw also 
reminded Mr. Collins of the grant that the city obtained to place seating and tables on the promenade. 
 
Ms. Shaw asked if the board would like the July 2019 board meeting to take place in the new Van Etten 
Library location.  The board was in favor of this.  
Ms. Shaw met with the Van Etten Town Board regarding the VE Library’s upcoming move.  He was 
told that this will take place within a year, as soon as the old town building is sold.  All town offices 



and the VE Library will move to the Village Hall.  Steele and CCLD will provide staff to help box up 
books prior to the move.  Computer hookups at the new location will be done by Steele staff. 
 
The Southern Tier Library System will hold a cost-share discussion in July.  Projected rates are 0% in 
2020, less than 4% in 2021, and less than 4% in 2022.   
 
The Drag Story Time event at Steele went well.  It was well-attended by parents and children of all 
ages.  Mr. Shaw received several e-mail complaints about the event, each of which he has replied to.  
Before the event, there was a post on Craigslist calling for a peaceful protest at the event.  Mr. Shaw 
asked that the Elmira Police be present, and one officer was present in the building during the event.  
Steele may do another Drag Story Time in the fall.  Ms. Dworkin suggested that Steele schedule 
additional future presentations from Deaf, bilingual, etc., people. 
 
Ms. Kappanadze asked that the Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Policy (see below) be posted 
ASAP (Mr. Shaw said that it would be done tomorrow) and reminded the board of the need for official 
complaint officers to be designated from among the library staff.  Discussion ensued. 
 
CONSENT ITEM: Approval of the Personnel Actions for June (Appendix C). Resolved by Ms. Larnard, 
seconded by Mr. Blandford that the CCLD Board of Trustees approves the Personnel actions as 
submitted.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
CONSENT ITEM: Approval of the Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Policy.  Resolved by Mr. 
Schamel, seconded by Ms. Hayes that the CCLD Board of Trustees approves Policy 251 as submitted.  
VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
Resolved by Ms. Rogan move, and seconded by Ms. Dworkin, that the board thank Kate Dreifuss [sp?] for her 
21 years of excellent service as a library staff member.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 

Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to the board 
(Document #2019-34). Ms. Kappanadze requested that board members reply “Yes” or “No” to her e-
mails asking if they could attend upcoming Executive Committee meetings in order to have a quorum. 

Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting was 
presented in writing to the board (Document #2019-35). Mr. Schamel reported that Joan Santulli will 
present the budget at the July 2019 board meeting.  

 
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee meeting was 
presented in writing to the board (Document #2019-36).  Mr. Shaw reported that a door for the small 
room in the Teen Space was installed today, and that a power strip and acoustic tiles will be installed in 
the small room. 
 
There was no update on the boiler project at the West Elmira Library. 
 
A member of the community has offered to install a ramp to the shed at the Horseheads Library at no 
cost.  This will make it easier for library staff to move things into and out of the shed, especially in the 
winter. 



CONSENT ITEM: Approval of Al Baselli’s offer to install a ramp to the Horseheads Library shed. 
Resolved by Mr. Schlesinger, seconded by Ms. Hayes that the CCLD Board of Trustees approves Mr. 
Baselli’s offer as submitted.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
Mr. Shaw has received cost proposals for the exterior sign at Steele, and recommended that the board 
accept AJH Designs’ proposal. 
 
CONSENT ITEM: Approval of AJH Designs’ proposal to install an electronic sign outside the Steele 
Library. Resolved by Mr. Schlesinger, seconded by Mr. Blandford that the CCLD Board of Trustees 
approves AJH Designs’ proposal as submitted.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
Mr. Shaw has also received proposals for the Steele staff room renovation, and recommended that the 
board accept Bob Butcher’s proposal. 
 
CONSENT ITEM: Approval of Bob Butcher’s proposal to manage the Steele staff room renovation 
project. Resolved by Ms. Dworkin, seconded by Ms. Hayes that the CCLD Board of Trustees approves 
Bob Butcher’s proposal as submitted.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
Election & Continuity Committee. Ms. Rogan asked that the board appoint Kevin Hansen to replace 
Will Wehling in the 4th District.  Ms. Silvernail moved, seconded by Ms. Rogan, to appoint Kevin 
Hansen as the CCLD Board Trustee for the 4th District. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  Mr. Hansen 
will be sworn in at the July board meeting. 
 
Rich Lasko has agreed to run as the candidate for the 8th District in the November 2019 elections, 
replacing Ms. Kappanadze. 
 
Sue Cook at the Chemung County Board of Elections has proposed a replacement for Tim Blandford’s 
seat in the 13th District. 
 
Lillian White has found a possible candidate for her seat in the 9th District. 
 
Personnel Committee.  Discussion of a salary increase for Ron Shaw was deferred to executive 
session.  Ms. Kappanadze mentioned that the CCLD Board is required to do a self-evaluation; Ms. 
Dworkin replied that she would start working on this. 
 
Old Business.  None. 
 
New Business.  Mr. Shaw updated the board on the progress of the CCLD strategic plan.  He met with 
Jenny Matthews, who will take the board’s suggestions back to the Strategic Plan Committee.  We’ll 
then schedule a meeting for board members and the Strategic Plan Committee. 
 
Ms. Dworkin asked whether there was a library presence at local Juneteenth or Pride celebrations.  Mr. 
Shaw said that there was no official presence at either event, although several employees attended 
Pride. 
 
Personnel Committee. Ms. Kappanadze moved, seconded by Mr. Schamel, to move into Executive 
Session to discuss personnel matters. [Specifically, issues related to Drag Queen Story Time and to Ron 
Shaw’s salary increase.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Ms. 
Larnard to come out of Executive Session.  VOTE:  Unanimously Approved. 



 
Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Ms. Silvernail that the CCLD Board of Trustees give Ron Shaw, 
Executive Director, CCLD, a 2% salary increase.  VOTE: 10 Yea, 3 Nay, 0 Abstentions.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:25pm. The next regular meeting of the board will be held on Thursday, 
July 18th, 2019 at 6:00pm at the Van Etten Village Hall, 83 Main St, Van Etten, NY 14889. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Martha Smith, Secretary of the Board 

CCLD Trustee, 14th District 



CII EMUNG COUNTY LlBRARV DISTRICT 
IFln l ndl1 R~porl . J UN E 30. 1019 

'"-
:111, ,,_1 

1""ll" 
It.~h"" .. u. .. 

, .. _. 
1t ... I. I .. 

,~ 

~~ 
-. -.-,.-

(OOCUM DiT nOt '·3D) 

~'" 



3:011 PM 

07m11i 

Chemung County library District General Fund 
Unpaid Bills Detail 

T,,,, 
Aleta Yarrow 

" 
Totat Aleta Yem:tW 

MdyOaigle .. 
Total Andy Daigte 

CJlrollne PQPpend.ck 

Oltt. 

07118/2019 

07118/2019 

B~I 0711812019 

Total Caroline POPPefl(Ieck 

Centurion Technolog ltol 
Bill 07/18120 19 

Total Cenlurion T edlnoloOlM 

Co nnl. Ogilvie 
8111 

Total Connie OgIlvie 

07/0912019 

E8SCO InfOfmalJon Se ..... lc •• 
Bil 07Kl\V2019 

Total EBSCO Information SeMces 

ELM US .... Inc. 
8~1 

TOla l ELM USA, Inc. 

Elm;ra Wltter BOIIrd 

•• 
Total ElmirJl Water eo.n:I 

Fllomena J8ck ,. 
Total Fliomena J8ck 

0711812019 

0711812019 

0711812019 

Fir. Alum S.rvlee Teehnology, Ine. 
BiR 07109J2019 
Bil 0711812019 

Total f ire AIan'n Ser.4oe Teehnology. Inc. 

firs! Tranllt, Inc ,. 
Total First TranSit, Inc 

Horuh"adl Printing 

0711812019 

Bill 0711812019 
BiH 0711812019 

Total Hof5eh8ad1 Printing 

Impe.bl Door Conlfo ll, lnc. 
Bil 07118/2019 

Tot&Ilmperial Door Controls. Inc. 

Jam .. Warren 
BiN 

Total James Warren 

0711812019 

J,nWay Company USA Inc. 
Bil 0711812019 

Total JanWay Company USA, loe. 

As of July 18, 2019 

Memo 

818 From the S.a - 51 

concert 8t St· 7123 pd by Friend. 01 CCLO 

MIleage reimb 4130·6128 

ESook Selectors Luncl>eon 

Pads lor DIG<: Cleaning machll\8 

HH annual ftre ,tarm mooilOling 
ST annual ~re alarm! basic $/ICUrily monitoring 

BKM fuel 5126-&'29 & RadiatorlhMdllghllAC fep.<Mr 

HH Summer proprams 6/19 
HH Summel prog,....,s 6/19 

handicap door repair BF not cove<ed by mainl agmt 

7130 P.norm&nCl al8F 

Supply of _ buds - all libraries 

Open Bat,nGe 

25().OO 

250.00 

450.00 

4SO.oo 

~3.21 

43.21 

10.00 

10.00 

17.73 

17.73 

6,091 .53 

6,091 .53 

60.95 

"'." 
212.52 

212.52 

250.00 

2SO.00 

lOO.OO 
1,128.00 

1.428.00 

2 ,35a.43 

2,358.43 

194.55 
194.55 

389.10 

16.74 

16.74 

JSO.OO 

30' 00 

1,101.16 

1,101.16 



3:06 PM 

01109119 

Chemung County library District General Fund 
Unpaid Bills Detail 

As of July 18, 2019 

'"" M,mo 

0111812019 111, 718, 1111, 11Z2 - various programs WE - $300 paid by Ouk:t. Arts Grant 

Koptrnlk Ob""'lOlory IOnd Scl.nce C.nl.r 
Bill 0111812019 P1ogramatWE11Z2 

Total Kopernik Observatory.oo ScIence Center 

U. 
BI 

TotllilTA 

lob'" Margel on 
Bill 

T of.lll Marie MafQe$Of1 

M.ngel Metzg,r & Be" 

01118r'20 111 

8m 0111812019 

Total Meno&l Mettger '" B,rr 

Mlehelle Erleklon 
Bm 07/09120111 

T Olal Mid>elle Erickson 

NQ,IIh', AfII Animal Woo.,hop, Inc , 
Bil 0711812019 

T~I NQ.8h', Me AnImal won.6Ilop, Inc:, 

P.t" fletcMr .. 
Quic:k .. Print .. .. 
Total OuicI<er Printer 

SIO)'I" & EVlln, .. 
Total Slylel '" Evant 

Scl.ncet.II ... 
BiN 

T olal SCien<:etellers 

Tlngl.wood 

'"' 
Total TangltwOod 

Th. 19lder ,. 
T olal The lear;ler 

01/18120111 

0711812019 

0111812019 

07118120111 

0711812019 

01118120111 

UnlqlMl Mlnagamtnl StrvlcfIJ, Inc;, 
8iI 0711812019 

T ol.t Uniql.ltt M. ... gemenl SeMces, Inc:, 

W'lImanl food Marll't, Inc , 
ail 0711812019 

TOIaI Wegman& Food Ma"'etllne. 

TOTAl 

Memben.hip-Trustees Auoci31ion 

HFl mowing 5IJO-.6I27 

W l9 audil final paymenl 

Program wpplies VE JUM 

BF Space Alien program 8/1 

Concan ST 7130 pd by Friend$ of CClD 

Summer l ien Events Broc:h",es 

AI10mey fees - General Svc 411·5131 

71'l2 proIJrttm -ST. 7/31 program HI-! 

Teen PI'OQfam 811 

AnntJlJl subscription SI 

Adu" SRC .t 51 

>00." 

247.50 

247.50 

325.00 

325.00 

350.00 

350.00 

2,300.00 

2,300.00 

119.88 

119.88 

574.50 

574.50 

... oo 
",.oo 

".oo 

"oo 

651.00 

651.00 

730.00 

730.00 

125.00 

125.00 

385.56 

"''' 
223.75 

223.75 

98.41 

98.41 

20,401.17 



,~ 
07/03/19 

Chemung County library Olstrict Grant Fund 
Unpaid Bills Detail 

As of July 3, 2019 

Type D.te MIrna Open Billanc. 

Bak., & Taylor Soo" 
Bill 07/'0312019 

TOI&I Baker & T;aylo< BooI<. 

Infonn.tlon Today, Inc.. 
Bill 07/03/20111 

Totlllnformalion Todey. loe. 

Ingram Library S.rvlc.. 
Bill 07/0312019 

To"llngram library SeMcea 

M.tthaw Bflnder & Co., Inc:. 
Bil 07103f2019 

Total Matthew Bender & Co., Inc. 

Mlctw", T. pe, LLC 
alii 071{l3l2019 

TOlal MIdwest Tape. LLC 

N.A.O.A Appr:Jlul Guide. 
BiN 0110312019 

101*1 NAOA. Appralsilll GuIdes 

TOTAL 

Reference materia~ 269.79 

2ti9.79 

reference material 404.53 

404.53 

Non·Ficllon purchases· JUNE 925.43 

925.43 

1.853.28 

1,853.28 

eSA educational DIIOs 66.01 

66.07 

520.00 

520.00 

4,Olll.10 

: 

Page 1 



1:53 PM 

07103119 

Chemung County library District General Fund 
Unpaid Bills Detail 

T". O,t. 

1111 Pow.r Tool .. 07}(13J2(119 

Tol8l911 Power Tool 

AIIb Varrow 
eo 0710312019 

Tobl AlflIII VarrtHI 

Am.fInda Farltoy 

'" 0 710312019 

TOlai Amandll Fartey 

Amazon Credit PI,n 
Si« 0710312019 

TOIaI Amazon Credit Plan 

Amlflun BLltton Maehlnn 
Bill 07/0312019 

TOIaI American 8ullon Machines 

B.k .. & Taylor Boo'" 
811 0710312019 

ToLloi B.ker & Taylor Books 

Blilckllolll Publishing 
8iI 07/03f2019 

T 0181 Blacltstone Publisl*lg 

Bright 51.1 Child,en', Th.",.. lLC 
Bill 07I03I2019 

ToCaI Brighl Star Childten'. Theave. LLC 

Sryan Boynton .. 
T alai &yen Boynton 

CClO p.ny Cash .. 
TOIal CClO Petty Cash 

07I03I2019 

07I03I2019 

Chemung Can.1 Trull Company 
Sill 07/0312019 

Total Chemung Canal TruSI Company 

Crl. Johnlon 
Bill 
BiU 

Total Crt. JohnlOO 

Oorll J.an M.tzger 
Bill 

Total DorIs Jean Metzger 

Elmlr. Wele. Board .. 
ToI&I Elmir. Wei ... Boald 

FIiOfTMn. Jack 
eo 

T0181 Filomene Jactc 

0 710312019 
0 7/03/2019 

07I03I2019 

07103/2019 

07103JZ(119 

Flrl Alarm S ..... lc. T.chnology. Inc. 

As of July 3, 2019 

M.rno 

Cleaned itIId Iubed nwing rn8dlinls for ••. 

7f l l Imaginary Clouds at ST 

rejmb ST .lIN prag supplies 

PlIfChases en librsrie5 SI9-6f7 

Button Machine supplies 

Book purchase Steele JUV 6/5·6120 

Audillboolls purch&se - ST June 

712~ program al HH 

Meals fur IT oonfervnce - &19 

Petty C8!!h BFmElSTJuv 

Credit card · IT coni hol8llT. Wob aupplyl ... 

7116 prog al BF 
7115 progat ST 

,elmb Teen prog supplies 

Wale! biI - WE ~117-&17 

Open Saltlnee 

375.00 

315.00 

235.00 

2" 00 

oem 
90.72 

2,953.2~ 

2.953.24 

292.35 

292.35 

1.625.06 

1.625.06 

133.98 

133.98 

495.00 

495.00 

" .00 

"'.00 

510.82 

510.92 

3.B19.59 

3.81 9.69 

250.00 
250.00 

"".00 

119.41 

119.47 

l6." 

36.96 

250.00 

250.00 



1:53 PM 

07103/U 

Chemung County library District General Fund 
Unpaid Bills Detail 

As of July 3, 2019 

'''' .. 07I03I2019 

T otaol Fire Mum $er'\Iice T echnoIog')'. ,nco 

Glenlu P .. , 
Bill 07/0312(119 

Total Glenioe Peel 

Ingram Library Se""lces 
Bill 07lO312019 

Totalll\Qflm Library SeN\oe$ 

Total Jemex.ln(:. 

Jeffrey Mlth ... 
B~I 

Total Jeff,ey Mathews 

Jo. Lopresto .. 
Total Joe L.opre5ta 

Keren Curren 
Bill 

T ota.I K .. en Curren 

01103/2019 

071O.lI2019 

OM)3/2019 

07/0312019 

Milellge 613·6121 

l.ibr8ry Ma,erlals el ~b<aries JUNE 

Sleele Juv Pfogrem supplieslmlleege 519 ... 

Concen Doublelake 7116 pd by Friends 

1/15 GoUfd Birdhouse prog 8' HH 

Kope,nlk Obn"".tory Ind Selenee C,nt" 
BiI 07/0312019 Program iN WE 118/19 

TOlal K~ ObsetYalory end Sdence Center 

Kopernlk.Ob"rYilory and Sclen~ Center 
8i. 0710312019 VenEtlNl PfOO'.m 7/17 -

Tola! Kopwnlk .ObselVlllory ... nd $denQe Canler 

library Ide •• LLC 

" 07/0312019 

Total Ubrllry Ideas LLC 

lyndu:omIl.lnktdln Corp 
Bill 0710312019 

T otallyndl.c:omJllMedin C«p 

MldW .. t Tlpe 
Bil 

TO .... 1 MidWo$1 T.IXI 

01103/2019 

Pen9uln Random Hou ... LLC 
Bil 07/0012019 

T ~ Penguin Random Houu, LLC 

R.lny TOld Glming (Troy N.ld'l 
8i11 01ro3l2019 

Total R8~y TOld Geming (Troy Neida) 

Reliloble Computer Products 
BiI 07lO312019 

Total ReIlsble CompUler Products 

Robe" Rog ... Puppet Com~ny 
81M 0110312(119 

Library Malerial$ior HH pd by Frtencls 

Subsc:ripIIoo 7/1 9-7120 

DVDlAudio pui'cha~e~ · SUiH 

ST Teen game nlghl6l25 

7123 prog II 8F 

217.00 

97.15 

91.15 

9.113.17 

9.113.17 

920.70 

"",. 
137.50 

137.50 

"'.00 

350.00 

300.00 

300.00 

247.50 

247.50 

215.00 

215.00 

94.75 

94.75 

7.000.00 

7.000.00 

4,118.85 

4.118.85 

431 .25 

"'.00 

"'.00 

1.301.23 

1.301.23 

395.00 

PI"" 2 



1:53 PM 

07/03111 

Chemung County Library District General Fund 
Unpaid Bills Detail 

'''' Dale 

T QUlI Robert Rogars Puppet Company 

Ronald Sh;lw ,. 
Toliol R~ Shctw 

Smllelhk .... 

"" 
Total SmaeMakeo-s 

01/0312019 

07103/2019 

SO\Ith.,n Tie, llbr8ry System 
BiM 01/03/201" 

Tot8I SOuthern neo- Libtaty System 

St.pl .. Cr.dit P~n 
BiB 

TOlal Staptes Credit Plan 

Sta,·Gazelie 
Bill 

Tocal Sw-GazeUe 

07/0312019 

07103120111 

SUPERCLEAN Carpet Sa ..... ln 
Bil 07/0312019 

Total SUPERClEAN Carpet Sen40e 

Tangl,wood 

"" 
TOlet TangillWOOd 

TachSoup ., 
Tot.! TechSOup 

Th, StotyC,aftera 

'" 
Tot.1 The SIorycrafters 

w. B. MIiOn Co. Inc. 

07/0312019 

07/0312019 

07/03/2019 

BiR 07/0312019 

Total W. B. Mason Co. Inc. 

Xerox Cotporatlon 

" 
Total X8fO~ Corporation 

TOTAL 

0110312019 

As of July 3, 2019 

Memo 

MiI&age teimb 3121-6'13 plus expenses 

Program supplies - WE 

Cool Ed day 81:28 at CCC-lib DisI share ... 

AD supply 

HH -Carpet deaoing 

ST Juv program 712 

Qulckbooks software 

7/16 prog al HH 

Maintenaroce agml for pasl due and ann ... 

Optln BaJann 

395.00 

119.11 

119.11 

'M' 
58." 

348.13 

348.13 

38.82 

620.14 

620.14 

875.00 

875.00 

75.00 

75.00 

50.00 

50.00 

""'.00 

580,00 

411.38 

411 .38 

545.01 

40.261.66 

Palla 3 



 Document #2019-40     
 
Report of the July 3rd, 2019 meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District:   
 
The meeting came to order at 6:00pm. Attending the meeting from the Executive 
Committee were Phyllis Rogan and Martha Smith (Jack Schamel arrived at the end of the 
meeting); and Joan Santulli and Ronald Shaw, CCLD management. Other board 
members in attendance were Rachel Dworkin, Ann Hayes, Lillian White, Pat Silvernail, 
Bonnie Chollet, Lee Saginario and Karl Schwesinger. New board member Kevin Hansen 
was in attendance but did not vote as he has not yet been sworn in.  
 
UNPAID BILLS:  Ms. Santulli submitted the Unpaid Bill List dated 7/3/19 for the Grant 
Fund - $4,039.10 and the General Fund - $40,261.66. Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by 
Mr. Schwesinger to approve payment of the bills as submitted in writing.  VOTE: 
Unanimously Approved. 
 
Vice President Rogan reminded board members that the next meeting will be held at the 
Van Etten VILLAGE Hall.   
 
Director Ron Shaw gave the following reports: 
**At the STLS Continuing Ed day, 18 staff members took the Sexual Harassment 
Prevention Training. There are very few more who need the training.  CCLD will need to 
schedule this training for our many volunteers.  
**The Drag King/Queen Storytime held at the Steele Library on June 14th had 85 people 
in attendance.  Most of the comments regarding the event were positive.  
**The July Labor/Management meeting was cancelled.  Mr. Shaw will forward the list of 
board members who signed up for the remaining months of 2019.  
**Internet Policy.  Teen Librarian, Doris Metzger, is requesting a change to CCLD’s 
Internet policy to allow Teens to use the computers in the Teen Space without needing 
parental permission to access things like FaceBook.  The adjustment to the policy will be 
written up and forwarded to the board for its consideration.   
**Regarding personnel, four part-time pages have been hired to replace people who have 
either resigned or have been promoted.   Also, one Page position has not been replaced, 
instead Mr. Shaw plans to upgrade that position to a Clerk position for the Steele Juv 
staff.  
**Mr. Shaw has met with the City Manager, Mike Collins, regarding the issues CCLD 
has with the Promenade.  The City plans to provide garbage cans.  Mr. Collins has 
requested a more prominent police presence in the area as well.  Regarding the request 
for CCLD to receive a copy of the grant request for the upgrades the City made to the 
Promenade, Mr. Shaw was informed that this request will need to be made under the 
F.O.I.L. laws.  
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:16pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District will be held on Wednesday, August 7th, 2019 at 6pm in 
the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele Memorial Library.   
 
 
Following the meeting new trustee Mr. Kevin Hansen took his Oath of Office.  



Document #2019-41 
 
Report of the July 10th, 2019 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District.  
 
Attending the meeting were CCLD board members Jack Schamel, Lillian White, Jessica Roberts 
and Marge Kappanadze and Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, CCLD Administration. The meeting 
opened at 8:00am.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the June 30th, 2019 Financial Report to the Committee. The Report will be 
forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the Unpaid Bills Detail dated 7/18/19 for the General Fund - $20,408.97 
The bill list includes the annual invoice for magazine subscriptions for all libraries and recent 
repairs to the Bookmobile. The Unpaid Bills Details will be forwarded to the full CCLD board 
for its consideration.  
 
The Committee approved the proposed 2020 Library District Budget with a 3.51% increase to 
the tax receipts. The proposed budget will be forwarded to the full board for review and 
approval.  August 1st is deadline to submit the tax information to the Chemung County Board of 
Elections in order for it to be included on the November General Election ballot.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:05am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, August 14th, 2019 at 8:00am in the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele 
Memorial Library.   



Document #2019-42 
 
Report of the July 3rd, 2019 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung County 
Library District 
 
The meeting opened at 5:35pm. Present were Mr. Schwesinger, Ms. Smith and Ms. Saginario. Also attending 
were Joan Santulli and Ronald Shaw, CCLD Management. 
 
The Committee received reports on the following: 
 
Outdoor Sign.  Mr. Shaw has spoken with Andy Harding regarding the sign. They went through the 
estimate to determine which local companies might be able to meet requirements and went outside 
and looked at set back distance, existing electrical, internet cable/wireless, etc.  
 
Teen Section.  The electricians will be coming in to add electrical to the west wall (estimate $2,800).  
Quotes for acoustic tiles have been requested from two companies, Sedgwick in Corning ($4,868) 
and Norva Nievelle ($6,696).  The Committee was able to view a sample of the tile. There are funds 
still available from the Teen Space grants to pay for these additional expenditures.  
 
Renovation of the Staff Room/Kitchen area.  Mr. Shaw will be meeting with Bob Butcher next week 
regarding this project.  
 
West Elmira Library. The furnaces for West Elmira are on the County Buildings & Grounds list of 
things to do. They plan to schedule this project for mid September because once it is started, there 
will not be any heating or cooling until the project is finished. 
 
Bookmobile. On June 11th the Bookmobile’s check engine/stop engine light came on and it was 
taken back to the garage where they found it needed a VGT Actuator. The VGT actuator moves 
either vanes or sliding sleeve inside the turbocharger which increase or decreases exhaust gases 
driving the turbine wheel which in turn increases or decreases turbo burst based on engine operating 
conditions. It has been replaced at a cost of $1151.00.  
 
Boiler at Steele. Mr. Shaw has been notified that the Southern Tier Library System (STLS) has 
more funding to distribute for New York State Construction grants.  He plans to submit a grant 
request for a new boiler at the Steele Library.  The estimate for this project is $315,780 of which 
CCLD will be required to match 25%.  The Library District has already set aside funds for future 
construction projects which will cover our share.  If this request is granted, the project would start 
next year.  

Van Etten Library. The July board meeting will be held at the new location for the library.  Mr. Shaw will 
send out the address to board members.  
 
 
Horseheads Library.   Al Baccile Paving has been notified of the board’s approval for installation of 
the ramp. They will start at their earliest convenience. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:55pm.  
 
 
 
 The next regular meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on Wednesday, August 7th, 
2019 at 5:30pm in the Petrie Conference Room at the Steele Memorial Library. 
 



2020 Chemung County Library District Budget - FIRST draft for B & F 

SUI< nfN ...... Grams. rctt .t TOIII2019 
Ite'nun l,ilnr')' I);srrict '"" - lO2OTOIII .... '" %clunge 

Uny - fUK> &. ~ &. <ORIribulJOfli , S7.02S , , >.000 , 6O.02S , 6U7S sa.~% 

0 .... 11 (loul "'" llH: Stale of 1'1 ...... VOIk) , , , S S 
~·oond.lion conuibulicKll S S , 200,000 S 200,000 S 200.000 100.0% 
Inlt",,1 inc"",. , .. .., , , S .. .., , , . .., IB.}% 
Libnory dinrici tax rKcipt5 S 3,115.115 , , S },II S. II S S 3.1109.492 10UI% 

PILOT IuncIs S 10.000 S S S 70,000 S ~."" 129.6% 
~Aid 

CCIIlnIlliInry Dcv!:1opmrno S S 99 .. 212 S S 99..272 , 99..212 100.0% 
CCIIlnIl1looIr: Aid , S 67,599 S S 67,599 S 61599 100.0% 
t oe .. 1 Uhnry~Aid S S J9.S46 S , 

"'" , ".000 106.~ 

01110,. Stile Aid S , S S S 
Inl<:tfund lnIn5kT S S S S S 
1'0111 rcvetlUOS S },lSO.140 , 206.417 , 20J.OOO , J.6S9.S51 S 3.S4I.2J8 10J.l% 

TO\012019 
[;.ptn<li,w .. 2020TOOIl .-...... , 1.495,556 S "' ... S S 1,67),5)6 S 1.625.911 101.0% 
c>v.rtirnt ,nd HoIidI!Iy Salaries S 22.619 S , , 22,6 19 , 24.SOII 92..l% 
flt'A S 129.910 S S S 129,910 S 126.201 102.9% 
1'1'1' Siole Itrtifnnml S 261.961 S S S 267.961 S 2S9.OOO IOU% 
M"";""I &. donLaI S 518.495 S , , SIR.495 S 482.1118 107..1~ 

Olht.'f employe< costs idinbility, """"",loy.n..,l, wor\m wmp) S 17.919 S , S 11,919 S 19,,",0 "''" ~.yroll 9Ut..al.11 , 2,452.527 , "'."" , , 2.632,527 , 2.51 ~ .•• 6 IOJ.7% 
Equiprncnl , 62,110 , , S 62,) 10 S .S.J67 117.m 
Telephone S 14.800 , , , 14,800 , 13.S6S 1011.1% 
Supplies S " ... S , "'" S 48.100 S ""., ~."" 
T ... ...,I .nd coolirluiag cduc.>tioR S 12,91S S , S 12.91S S I'.')IS 86.6% 
Koplin IOId .... in........, , n.olo , , S 21.010 , 24,4 15 110.6% 

"- S 2.000 S , S 2.000 S 2.000 100.0% 
LiI:nry _lCriaIS (boob, ~idro. dC.) S 190.110 S 76,371 S 108.000 , }7S.04 1 , 364,116 10J.0% 
Util"JI$ , ""., , , S 60.200 , S8.200 10l.~% 

Build"" clcao ... , S<rpptict , 13.700 , S S 1),700 , IU2S 102.8% 
1' .... 1. ps .• nd oil , 3 .. 100 , , S 3.100 , 2.800 110.7% 
In<u"'''''. , 33 .. S77 , , S H.S77 S 11.130 107.9% 
Vehicle IlptflIlioMl l lea ... , '.000 , S S ',000 , '.000 100.0% 
ProfcuioMl f<C$ {.oo;Iitm&, .... mbc"J,ipo, lcp.I r=. news","",. CIe.) , 22.17S , , , 22.17S , n.on 96.1% 

o..llI I'rnceN-inI """""'" 
, 92.115 S 19,546 S S 1J1.681 S 121.12S 103.1% 

Plya>eQlofw.<i , ,.'"' , S S S.'" , "'OO 100.0% 
Litnry ............... S 37.997 , , S 17.997 , , ..... 10).0% 
Chc ........ Coonty ""'"' (MG. __ 01<;.) S I~.OOO S S , 

".000 S 13,000 """ C.pkal i""",,\'C\I>enI$ , 10.000 , , S 10.000 , 25,000 "."" C(*IiIIICIIC)' S S2.f>!1 S S , S2.b~l , S2.B'JO 99.S% 
S"bI"",l conlne' .... 1 f«s , "ffi1.612 , 1160411 , 10'1.900 , 9)J,929 , 910,692 102.6% 

Ikt.. ...... it.< S S S , , 
(jrmd I0I:l1 S 3.2.S0,139 , lO6.~ 17 S 109.900 , J,~.4)6 , J .... 9.11. 10U% 

"~ S (0, , , 9J. 100 S 9),100 , 92.100 

··NOTI1: The 2% u.cn, __ III be S-IoO,I90. "")1'011 alO<lr: incn;ue-s br S,",.081 . ... inS .11 ofllle ~ olio""" try II>< \u c.p 



U brllry Administration 

State of New Grants, fees. 
Revenues Library Distritt Yo'" &~. 2020 Tiotal 2(l19Total Difference 

Library .• fines & fees & contributions • • 
Grants (but not the State of New York) $ • Foundation contributions • • 
Interest income • 8.000 • a.oOO • 6,000 133.3% 
Library di&tnct tax receipts $ 263.122 • 263.122 $ 321.134 81 .9% 

PILOT lunds • 70,000 $ 70,000 • " ,000 129.6% 
State Aid $ • 
Central Librafy De:veIopment $ • 
Central BooII Aid $ • Loc8I Librnty 5eMce:s Aid $ • 
Other State Aid $ • Inteoiund translef • • Total revenues • 341.122 • • $ 341.122 $ 381,134 89.5% 

E ~penditures 

Salaries • 140.370 $ 140.370 • 166.049 84.5% 
Qvef1ime and Holiday Salaries • • • FICA • 10,738 • 10.738 • 12,703 84.5% 
NY State Retirement • 21,840 $ 21 .840 • 26,070 83.8% 
Medical & dent3I (staff share dedl,lCtedj $ 118,569 • 118,589 $ 115.1 47 "'''' OUler emptoyee costs (disability, unemployment, won • 738 • 738 • 1,219 60.5% 
Payroll subtotal • 292.275 $ $ 292.275 $ 321.188 91.0% e_ • 6,605 $ 6.605 • ',330 
Telephone (ind. IT cell phone) $ 2,SIlO $ 2,SIlO $ 1.215 
Suppli81 $ 1,000 • 1,000 • 1,000 100.0% 
Travel and continuing educatioo • 5.540 • 5,540 • 5,540 100.0% 
Repairs and maintenance • 100 • 100 • 100 
Postage • 100 • 100 • 100 100.0% 
LibrAry mAlerlAls (bookS. video. etc.) • • 
Utilitios • • 8uildlng cleaning supplies • • Fuel. gAS. And oil • S 
Insurance • <82 S ." S .,0 112.1% 
Vehicle opIIfCItionai f lease $ $ 
Professional fees (Auditing. memberships, legal fees, $ 18.675 • 18,675 $ 16,175 115.5% 
Data Processing Expenses $ • 
Payment of !axel; $ $ 
Library programming $ $ 
Chemung County costs (8&G. Yisioo. elc.) • $ 
Capital improvllfTMmls $ 10,000 • 10,000 • 2!5.QOO 
Contingency 8% • 3.845 $ 3.845 • 5.056 76.0% 
Subtotal conl ractual fees $ 48.847 • • , 48.847 • 59.946 81 .5% 

Deb! service $ $ $ • • 
Oepaftmental total $ 341 ,122 • $ • 341 ,122 • 381,134 89.5% 

Net: • (0) $ • $ (0) • (0) 



Big Flats Libfary 

State of New Grants, fees, 
R~~ Ubfa'Y District Y~k ,~. 2020 TiObl 2019 Total Differeooe 

Llb<ary - fines & fees & COf'llribubons , 3.415 , 3,415 , 3,415 100,0% 
Grants (but flOtlhe Stale of New York) , , 
Foundallon contributions • 12,307 , 12,301 , 12,301 
Inleresl lnoome , , 
LlbflllY dlsrlct tax fea!lptS , 222,892 , 222,892 , 213,099 lG4,6% 

PILOT funds 
State Aid , , 
CentrSl Lib<ary D8'lelopment • • 
Central Book AkI , • Local Llb<ery Services AkI • • Other State Aid • • 
Inlerlund Ir8nsfef , • T 0lIl1 ff!\ll!f1UeS • 226,367 • , 12,301 • 238,61. , 228,881 IG4.3"/o 

Expenditufes 

salade, , 124,511 , 124,511 , 118,H2 10.,9% 
Dvartlme.rod Hotklay Sillarles , 2,471 • 2,471 • 2,428 

"CA • 9,115 • 9,115 , 9,210 lG4,8% 
NY State RelifllfTlllfl! • 20.06< , 20.'" • 19,024 105,5% 
Medical & dental • 16,351 • 16,351 • 15,189 107,6% 
Other empk)yee costs (disability, unemploymenl • 1,369 S 1,369 • 1,429 95.8% 
Payroll $ubtota l S 114,486 S S • 114.486 • 166,082 105.1 % 
Equipment S 1,130 • 1,130 , <00 
Telephone • 700 • 700 S 700 100.0% 
Supplies • 7.000 • 7.000 S 7.000 100.0% 
Tfllveillnd COf'ltinuiog educ;ltion S 1,145 S 1,145 S 2,045 56.'" 
Repaifs and mainteMflCe • 2.960 , 2.960 S 2,180 135.8% 

""'- • "" , ' SO • 'SO 100.0% 
lib<ary moLeflels (books, AV) Foundation 3% , 12,889 , 12,301 S 25,196 S 24.482 103.0% 
Utilit;es S 6.000 S 6.000 S '.000 100.0% 
Bu~dlng cleaning supplies , '.500 • '.500 • '.600 83.3% 
Fuel , 9a,. and oil , , 
.~~ • 2.314 • 2,314 • 2.635 87.8% 
Vehicle opeo-atlon:al/ lease S • 
Pr-oressiooal f_ (auditing, membenhips. legal , 3SO S 3SO S '" 49.0% 
Da\.il PfOOe»lng ExpeMflS • 10,320 , 10,320 , 10,012 102.5% 
Payroonl of taxes , 30 S 30 S 30 100.0% 
Libla!)' PfClgfamming 3% Inc • 5,350 S 5.350 S 5,192 103.0% 
Chemung County costs (B&G, vision . etc. ) • 600 S 600 S 500 120,0% 
CaOitaI Improvements , • , 
Conlingency 8% • 3,843 , 3,843 • 3,918 98.1% 
SublOlal contractual fees S 51,881 • S 12,301 • 64,188 • 62.m 102,2"-

Debl s8fVice , • • $ $ 

Oepllrlmentil total , 226,361 , , 12,307 • 238,674 , 226,881 104.3% 

Net: • 10) $ , $ (0) • 10) 



Bl>Okmoblla 

State 01 New Gl'ant6. fees. 
Revenv~ Library Districl "," ,- 2020 Tiolal 2019 ToliIl DiIl8fenee 

Llbtary - IiI'Ie$ a fl:e$ & c:ontributiorls S ". S ". S ". 100.0% 
Grants (but not 1tIe State of New YorIc) S S 
Foundation con1l111utioo'1t S 3.819 S 3.819 S 3.819 
Interest ino:orne S S 
Library dlslriQ lax receiPtS S 152.898 S 152.898 S 156.377 97.8% 

PILOT lunda 
State Aid S S 
Central LiDtary Development S S 
Central Book Aid S S 
Local t..Ibr.ary SeMeN AId S S 
0Iher State AId S S ...... """'M S S 
TOI3I revenues S 152.998 S S 3.8111 S 1S1S.S17 S 160.296 97.8110 

ElIpeoditunn 

Sa lari~ S 79.004 S 79.004 S 76.165 103.7% 
Overtime and Holiday Salaries S 826 S '" S .. 
FICA S 6.107 S 6.107 S 5.889 103.7% 
NY Slate Retirement S 12.&13 S 12.613 S 12.085 104 •• % 
MedM;aI a dental S 23,272 S 23,272 S 21.797 .,.'" 
Other employee COltS {~. unemployment S ,.- S '-'" S 1.175 93.1% 
Payml wblOlal S 122.916 S S S 122.916 S 123.1120 ,,-'" 
EQUipmenI S S S 2.000 
Telephone S 3,$00 S 3,SOO S 3.$00 100.0% 
Supplln S "" S 200 S 200 100.0% 
Travel lind conlinuing eduC8~on S '-9' S '" S 1.195 18.3% 
Repalfs "'nd maintenance S '" S '" S >2, 100.0% 
Postage S S S 50 0,,. 
Litlfary materials (books. video. et<::. ) 3'10 inc S ',"" S 3.819 S 7.819 S 7.592 103.0"4 
Utilities S S 
Building deimlng supplies S S 
Fuel. gas. and oil S 3.100 S 3.100 S 2.'" 110.7% ,- S 2.690 S 2.690 S 2.600 101.5% 
Vehide Operational I mainten .. nce S ',000 S ' ,000 S ',000 100.0% 
ProfeMionlll lees (auditing. memberships. Jag.1 S '00 S '00 S "0 62.5% 
Data Processing EI(p!!fl6M S •. 939 S •. 939 S 4.795 103.0% 
Payment of taKes S S 
l...ibmry progr .. mml"ll3% Inc S 2.005 S 2.005 S 1.947 103.0% 
Chemung COunty COStS (BaG. vision. etc.) S • S 
ca,xtal improvements S S 
Coo,""",, S 2.228 S 2.228 S 2 .• 12 112.4% 
Subtotal contractuill lees S 30,082 S S 3.8111 S l'.\lO1 S 36.376 93.2% --- , S S , S 

Oepanmental tOl .. 1 , 1S2.~8 , , 3.819 S 156.817 , 160.296 97.8% 

Net: S 0 • S , 0 • 0 



HOfseheilds Fr •• Library 

Stele of New Griln\:S, fees. 
R_ Library Districl Y~k & ~. 2020 Tiotal 2019 TOI8I Difference 

lIbrilry - fil'Kls & lees & contributioN S 11 ,000 S 11 ,000 S 13.1SO 83.1% 
Grants (but root the Slate of New York) S S 
Foundation contributions S 120,000 S 120.000 S 120.000 100.0% 
Inlerest Income S • Llllfiry dittrid tiI~ reatlpl$ • .(24.654 • .(2.(,6$4 S 394.fiU 107.6% 

PILOT funds 
State Aid • • Gefitraillbriry Oe~eIopmeot • S 
Ceotral Book Aid S • Local Library Service3 Aid • • 
Other Stale Aid • • Inu. fund traMler S • T 0Ia1 ril!'<'enue5 • 435.654 • • 120,000 S >55 .... S 521,n6 105.3% 

Elq)enCIiturM 

Salaries • 204,241 • 204,241 • 165.153 110.0% 
Ov9f1lmfl lind lioIiday salaries • 3.302 • 3.302 • 3,238 

"CA • 15.816 • 15.618 • 14.456 109.8% 
NY SIoIIG Rebr8fTMlf11 S 32.198 S 32,79' • 29,612 110 .S% 
Medical & dental • 61,436 • 61 ,436 • 51,144 10 7,5% 
Other employee ws~ (dinblity, unemploymenl • 2.441 • 2.441 • 2.58< is.2% 
Payroll SUlllotal • 320.102 • • S 320 ,102 • 292.829 109.3% 
Equipment • 3,156 • 3.156 S 2.249 140.3% 
Telephofle • , .m> • 1,200 • 1,200 100.0 % 
Supplies • l fi.200 • '.900 • 18.100 • 19.600 92.3% 
Trlv" lind continuing education • 745 • '" • "5 100.0'1. 
Repa irs and maintenance S 5,540 S 5.'" • 5,170 96.0% 
p~- • "'" S 500 • 500 100.0% 
Library materiels (books. video. ete.) 3% inc • 25.515 S 25.000 • SO.515 • 49.043 103.0% 
Utilities • 9.000 • 9.000 • 9.000 100.0% 
Build ing deanlng supplies S 4.500 • ' .500 S 5.000 90.0% 
Fuel. i3s, and oil S • Insurance S 2 ,491 • 2,491 S 2.400 103.8% 
Vehicle operational J lease S S 
Prolesslonallees (auditing , memberships .• ' • 600 • 800 S 2.100 28.6% 
Data Prooessng E~ • 28,593 S 28,593 • 27,813 102.8% 
P8yme-nt of te~9$ S 300 • 300 • 300 100.0% 
Library prO\jrflmming 3% Inc • 1.352 • 1.352 • 7.138 103.0% 
Chemung County wsls (B&G, Yill~, etc. ) • '.300 S ' .300 • ' .000 130.0% 
Capltllll~oyements • • • Contingency • .. "" • '."" S 8 ,989 95.2% 
Subtotal eontraewallees • 115.552 • • 26.900 • 142,452 • 142.8-47 99.1% 

Dellt service • • • • • 
Departmentilltotal • 435.6$4 • • 28.900 • 4tl2 .5S4 • 435,876 106.Z% 

Net: • 0 • • 93.100 S 93.100 • 92.100 



SI,..,1e III_I • • LIbr.ry 

Slate 01 New Grt<u.'en, "'_. Umory Ois\licl ,.. .- 2020not.. 2019 Total Dille",,,,," 

Liltary - fines &. , .. , & COI'IIributiDns 0 40,000 0 " .000 0 4~,5OO 87.W. 
Granl, (bul not !he SJ.Ie 0( NewYorI<) • 0 
F~tlon wnIribulion& 0 ~I ,2 13 0 ~1.213 0 51.213 100.0'lI0 
',,",.fit Income 0 0 
Ub'aIY di&tIiclln ~, 0 1,772,231 0 1,772,237 0 1.1170,870 1011.1% 

PILOT lund, 
Slate Aid 0 0 
c.n1l~1 l.lb<ary o.r.l'IopmenL 0 99,2n 0 99.2n 0 99,2n 100.0% 
Ceollal Boo!< Aid 0 87,599 0 87,599 0 87 ,5911 100.0'lI0 
Local Library ~MC>e' Aid 0 39.5-46 0 39.5046 0 37.000 """ 0tI'I0e. State Aid 0 0 0 
Inlerfund Ifans'er 0 0 
TOUOI,.venue, 0 1,812,231 0 206,4 17 0 51 ,213 0 2,089,U7 0 1 ,971 ,4~ 105.0'lI0 

E. Ptnd iIUfU 

Sal ... , 0 898,691 0 " .000 0 9&H91 0 1149,241 104.2% 
OvfIrllffle and Holl(lay Sala.ie, 0 12.712 0 12,712 0 14,796 "" '''A 0 76.607 0 78,607 0 13.749 103.9" 
NY Slale RetN-ernenl • ISS,210 • ISS.210 0 15 1.354 104.5" 
~bl &~I.J 0 265.313 0 285,373 0 23& ,839 111.1% 
Othe. employee COl19 (di$llbility, unemployment 0 10,715 0 10,715 • 11.871 ".,. 
P'yroI aublotal 0 1,422.J.09 0 " .000 0 0 1.512,309 0 1,439,900 105.0'lI0 
Equipment lnc;Juding Ma ker$paoe ~ems 0 41 ,636 • 41 ,636 • 33,673 123.6% 
Talephone (h:I,lev.tor phone) 0 ,","" 0 ... "" 0 ... ., 100.0% 
S_ O 25.000 0 25 .000 0 25,000 100.0% 
T ...... I.nd continuing education 0 3.100 • 3,700 0 """" 97 .4% 
ReplIirs and main1en3nce • 15,975 0 15.975 0 14,550 109.8'1. .... ..,. 0 1,100 0 1.100 0 '.000 110.0% 
Ubn'Iry .... ,er1a18 (book.,~. etc.) 3% inc 0 131 .977 0 76,871 • 51 .213 0 260,0&1 0 252.486 103.0'4 
UliMies 0 39,000 0 39,000 0 37.000 105.4% 
Building dea..-.g supplies 0 ';00 0 ' .200 0 •. - 124.0'4 
Fuel, ~., Ind 011 0 • ,-- 0 23,401 0 23,40 1 0 "'.0&0 111.5% 
Vehicle _rrionIol / luse 0 0 
P rofess;onaI fen (autIiIing, membef~. le{pl 0 '.- 0 ' .000 0 3.100 .. '" ""'-- 0 33.855 0 39.5046 0 73,olOl 0 70.1166 103.4% 
Parmanl 0( lax .. 0 '." 0 '." 0 '." 100.0% 
LJbrlry PfOIItamnW>g Juy $5175 ' $42OOK 10< No 0 14.600 0 14.600 0 14,115 103.0'4 
Chemung County COlli (B&G. vision. etc.) 0 11.500 0 11,500 0 11,000 104.5% 
CaplUllmptovilfMfllt 0 • Conlingeney 0 28,884 0 2&,&8-4 0 27,724 104.2% 
Subtolal conlf.elulll f,.." 0 389,928 • 116,417 0 51 .213 0 557 ,558 0 531.55-1 104.9% 

Delli seMo:. po:! 011111 2018 • • 0 0 kOlV/o! 

Depa!1menlallOlal 0 1,612 .237 • 206 ,411 0 SI .213 0 2,069,867 0 1,971, 4504 105 0% 

"" S (0) • 0 • (0) $ 



Van Ette n LIbrary 

Stale of New GranIS, leu, ,- library Oislrict '"' & more 202OTloIaI 2019 Total -~ 
library - firlO$ & lees & c:onlribulions • .,,, • , ... • 3.450 • 3.~25 100.7'4 
Grants (but oollhe Stale of New ytd) • • Founclation contribulions • '" • '" • '" 'nWelt Ineome • • Library disbid ta. ,eeelptt • 51.141 • 57,741 • 51.7CM 1".7% 

PiLOT funds 
St;Jle Aid • • Central Library DeveIopmenl • • Central Book Aid • • LOCIII Ubfary 5efvIcn AId • • Oll.er Stale AId • • Inlorlund tran$ler • • Total revenu~ , 58.191 • • 3.35<1 • 61.545 • 55.483 110.9% 

EKI*1diMeS 

SlIllIrI&I $ 27,298 S 27.298 , 25.121i1 108.6% 
Overtime end Holiday Salaries $ '" S '" • "" "CA S 2.151 $ 2, 15 1 , 1.922 111 .9% 
NY SUllO ReUtoment S 4,444 S 4 .4~4 S 3.945 112.6% 
Medieal & dental S 11 .121 S 11 .121 S 1.778 143.0% 
Other employ .. COSII (dlsllbUlty. unemploymenl S '" • ". s '" 98.8% 
Pilyroll:wblollli S 46.101 S S S 46.107 S 39.854 115.1% 
Equipmenl S '" S 799 S 1.2 15 "",,,,,,,, S S ....... S "'" S "" S "" 100.0% 
T ........ lloo c:ontnulng educalion S .. , S " . S '" 100.0% 
RePlOirs lind mllinlenance S H" S H" S H" 100.0% 
,~ .... • S S $0 
L.ibfaty ma1eria1s (books. video. elC.) 3% One • 2."'" • 3.35-4 • 6 .25<1 S 6.071 103.0% 
Utililies • • Building dunlng supplies • • • " Fuel. gas. 1100 oil • S 
,-~ S '" S 2" S "" 105.8"10 
Vehicle ap«aliooal I lees.e S • Prolessional fees (auditing. memt>ership$. Ie9aI S H" • U" S '" .,"" 
Oata Processing Ellpen$es • 2.986 • 2 .... S 2,928 102.3% 
Paymenl of taxes • • L.Ibfaty Pl"O{II'IIITImlng 3% ~ S 2.614 • 2 .674 S 2.596 103.0% 
ChemlHl(l County costs (Bo5G. vision. ele.) • , , 
Capital improvemenl$ • • Contingenq • 89. • '" • '" 96.3% 
Subtotal eontr&etual fees • 12,084 • S 3.354 S 15.438 S 15.629 98.8% 

Oebl servtce $ $ S • • 
OeP<lnmen13l lotal • 58.191 • • 3.354 • 6 1.545 • 55.483 110.9% 

Nllt: • 10, • • • (0) $ 



Wesl Elmi . .. L ib ... ry 

StatedNew Gr .. nts, fees , 
R_ Libr.try DisbiCI y,,", ,~. 2020 Tlotal 2019 Total Diffe<enc:e 

Libr .. ry - fines & ,_ & oonlributions , 2,000 , 2,000 , 2,225 89.9% 
Gt,nts (but !'lOt the Stale of New York ) , , 
Foundation oonb'lbulions , 12,307 , 12,307 , 12,307 
Irlletesllncome , , 
libf,ry ditlrid tll1 .ecelpts , 221 ,571 , 221 ,571 • 201,682 109.9% 

PILOT fund. 
SUIte Aid , • Central Library Developmt'nt , , 
Central Book Aid • • Local Libfary ServIce$ Aid , , 
OJhe!' State Aid , , 
Interllmd lfal'lSler , , 
Total revenues • 223,571 , , 12,307 , 235,878 , 216,21 4 109.1% 

Expendilufes 

Salaries , 111.435 , 111 ,435 , 104,899 106.2% 
Ovlll'tlme and Holld. ~ $ala.lu • 2.477 , 2,477 • 2,428 
"CA , 8.114 , 8,714 • 8.211 106.1 % 
NY SliItEt REttiflll'lMlOt • 17,998 , 17,998 , 16.650 106.8% 
Medical & dEtrital • 22,353 , 22,353 , 20,874 107.1% 
OJhe!' employee 00$\$ (dis8bi1ity, unemploymerlt • 1,355 , 1,355 , 1,411 96.0% 
Payroll wbtotal , 164,333 , • • 164,333 , 154,673 106.2% 
Equipmenl , 8,38< • 8,38< , 500 
TelEtPhone • <0, • <0, , .. , OS.'" 

'""" .. , 2,000 • 2,000 • 2,000 100.0% 
Traval 'nd oontinulog ech.ICIIILlon • , .. • "" • '" 100.0% 
R~n and maintenance • 2,210 , 2,2 10 • 1.590 139.0% 

"" .... • '" • '" • '" 100.0% 
library materill~ (books. vil$eO. etc.) 3% inc; • 12,889 , 12,307 • 25,196 , 24,462 103.0% 
Utililie$ , ' ,200 • 8,200 • '>00 100.0% 
Buildil'lg deanlng suppll$$ , 1,500 • 1,500 • 1,500 100.0% 
Fuel, gas, and oil , , 
Ifl$u'ance , 1,924 , 1,924 • 1,825 105.4% 
Ve/lIde opefatiorlal I luse • • ProfU11onIo1 feu (Iudltirog, memberships, legit • 2" • 2" • m 49.0% 
Data ProceSSlrog EKpeflSM • 11 .432 , 11,432 • 11 ,151 102.5% 
PaymentofUlKH • '" • '" , '" 100.0% 
libflry ptOg.,mmirog 3% inc; • 6,016 • 6,016 • 5,841 103.0% 
Chemu"'ll Courlty C:OS15 (B&G. vision , etc.) , 800 • 800 • 500 120.0% 
Capital Impmvemerl\$ • • Corlllngency • <,'" , <,'" • 3,862 113.6% 
5I.Jbtolal eonlfaClIJal f_ , 59,238 , • 12,307 , 71 ,545 , 61 ,541 1 HI.3% 

Debl service • • • • • 
Deparl.m8mal total • 223,571 • • 12,307 • 235,876 • 218,214 109.1% 

Net: • 0 • • • 0 • 0 



Travel & Continuing Education Detail 2020 

Admlnlstrallon ACllvlty Cosl 
Director ALAIPLAINYlA conference attendance $ 1.000 
Director Travel among libraries S 900 
Oireclor TraV91lo STLS and NYLA meeUngs $ 2SO 
Di"""" Insurance reimbursemenl $ 195 
vacanl Insurance reimbursement • 195 
vacant travel· banking J mise trips to libraries $ 200 
vacant HRATT con ference & workshops $ 300 
Board Board education I retreat • All staff Staff continuing education workshop $ 2.$00 

Subtotal • 5,540 

Big Flail! Library Activity Cost 
Staff Travel to STLS sponsored workshopll • 2SO 
,~. Youth Services conference I children's literature $ 
IT Staff Travel among libraries for trouDieshootlng, etc • 300 
Glenlce Travel among libraries $ ' 00 
Glenice Insurance reimbursement $ 195 

Subtotal • 1,145 

Bookmobile Activity Cost , ... Annual Bookmobile conference S , ... Youth Services conference f children's literature $ 
Kim Insurance reimbursement • 195 

Subtotal • 195 

Horseheads free library Acllvlty Cost 
, .. ff Traval to STLS sponsored workshops I 2SO 
Staff Youth Services conference I children's literature • ,~. NYLA atlefldance@$1000 $ 
IT Staff Travel among libraries fOf troubleshooting, etc S 300 

"""" Insurance reimbursement • 195 
Subtotal • "5 

Steele Memorial library Activity Cost 
Staff Travel to STlS sponsored workshops • 600 
, .. ff PlA conference attendance • Librarian/Staff Youth Services conference OJM $ 600 
, .. ff Children's literature workshops $ 200 
, .. ff Career Track WorKshops S 
IT staff Information technology workshops • 2.000 
, .. ff SCRle workshops $ 300 

Subtotal • 3.700 



Van Etten Library Activity Cost 
Michelle E Tra'l(llto STLS sponsored worllshops , 250 
Michelle E Insurance reimbursement S 195 
IT Staff Travel among libraries for troubloshootlng. otc • 400 

"'"'" Travelta I from Van Etten Library $ 100 
Subtotal • '" 

West Elmira Library Activity Cost 
Staff Travel to STLS sponsored wotIuIhops , 250 
Siaff Youth Services conference I children's literature , 
IT Staff Travel among libraries for troubleshooting, elc $ 200 
MicheUe B Insurance reimbUrsement $ 195 

Subtolal • ." 

Activity Cosl 



J~ -'-'" 
ondbW" .. IO~ 

-'" ..J.1!2!!. 
, .. -

; , ; "".~ <hn<.) ............... 1y 

-, , ~ 
--- .-

1-- .. 
; , 

I~- , 
I~':: 

I-·~~' - ~=:::. 
" -'" 



~1'i· .. __ lil ... __ 

'" 



2020 Chemung County Library District Budget (FIRST DRAFT) 

Total 2020 Total 2019 
Revenues Admin Big Flats Bookmobile Horseheads Steele Van Etten West Elmira Library Budget Budget Difference 

Library -- fines & fees & contributions $ $ 3,475 $ 100 $ 11 ,000 $ 40,000 $ 3,450 $ 2,000 $ 60,025 $ 67,875 88.4% 
Grants (but not the State of New York) $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Foundation contributions $ $ 12,307 $ 3,819 $ 120,000 $ 51,213 $ 354 $ 12,307 $ 200,000 $ 200,000 100.0% 
Interest income $ 8,000 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 8,000 $ 6,000 133.3% 
Library district tax receipts $ 263,122 $ 222,892 $ 152,898 $ 424,654 $ 1,772,237 $ 57,741 $ 221,571 $ 3,115,115 $ 3,009,492 103.51 % 

P ILOT funds $ 70,000 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 70,000 $ 54,000 129.6% 
State Aid 
Central Library Development $ $ $ $ $ 99,272 $ $ $ 99,272 $ 99,272 100.0% 
Central Book Aid $ $ $ $ $ 67,599 $ $ $ 67,599 $ 67,599 100.0% 
Local Library Services Aid $ $ $ $ $ 39,546 $ $ $ 39,546 $ 37,000 106.9% 
Other State Aid $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
lnterfund transfer $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Total revenues $ 341 ,122 $ 238,674 $ 156,817 $ 555,654 $ 2,069,867 $ 61,545 $ 235,878 $ 3,659,557 $ 3,541,238 103.3% 



Tota12020 Tota12019 
Expenditures Admin Big Flats Bookmobile Horseheads Steele Van Etten West Elmira Library Budget Budget 

Salaries $ 140,370 $ 124,511 $ 79,004 $ 204,247 $ 988,691 $ 27,298 $ 111,435 $ 1,675,556 $ 1,625,978 103.0% 
Overtime and Holiday Salaries $ $ 2,477 $ 826 $ 3,302 $ 12,712 $ 826 $ 2,477 $ 22,619 $ 24,508 92.3% 
FlCA $ 10,738 $ 9,715 $ 6,107 $ 15,878 $ 76,607 $ 2,151 $ 8,714 $ 129,910 $ 126,202 102.9% 
NY State Retirement $ 21,840 $ 20,064 $ 12,613 $ 32,798 $ 158,210 $ 4,444 $ 17,998 $ 267,967 $ 259,000 103.5% 
Medical & dental $ 118,589 $ 16,351 $ 23,272 $ 61,436 $ 265,373 $ 11,121 $ 22,353 $ 518,495 $ 482,818 107.4% 
Other employee costs (disability. uneml= $ 738 $ 1,369 $ 1,094 $ 2,441 $ 10,715 $ 268 $ 1,355 $ 17,979 $ 19,940 90.2% 
Payroll subtotal $ 292,275 $ 174,486 $ 122,9 16 $ 320,102 $ 1,512,309 $ 46,107 $ 164,333 $ 2,632,527 $ 2,538,446 103.7% 
Equipment $ 6,605 $ 1,730 $ $ 3, 156 $ 41,636 $ 799 $ 8,384 $ 62,310 $ 45,367 137.3% 
Telephone $ 2,500 $ 700 $ 3,500 $ 1,200 $ 6,500 $ $ 400 $ 14,800 $ 13,565 109.1% 
Supplies $ 1,000 $ 2,000 $ 200 $ 18,100 $ 25,000 $ 400 $ 2,000 $ 48,700 $ 50,200 97.0% 
Travel and continuing education $ 5,540 $ 1,145 $ 195 $ 745 $ 3,700 $ 945 $ 645 $ 12,915 $ 14,915 86.6% 
Repairs and maintenance $ 100 $ 2,960 $ 125 $ 5,540 $ 15,975 $ 100 $ 2,210 $ 27,010 $ 24,415 110.6% 
Postage $ 100 $ ISO $ $ 500 $ 1,100 $ $ 150 $ 2,000 $ 2,000 100.0% 
Library materials (books, video, etc.) $ $ 25,196 $ 7,819 $ 50,515 $ 260,061 $ 6,254 $ 25,196 $ 375,041 $ 364,116 103.0% 
Utilities $ $ 6,000 $ $ 9,000 $ 39,000 $ $ 6,200 $ 60,200 $ 58,200 103.4% 
Building cleaning supplies $ $ 1,500 $ $ 4,500 $ 6,200 $ $ 1,500 $ 13,700 $ 13,325 102.8% 
Fuel , gas, and oil $ $ $ 3, 100 $ $ $ $ $ 3,100 $ 2,800 110.7% 
Insurance $ 482 $ 2,314 $ 2,690 $ 2,491 $ 23,401 $ 275 $ 1,924 $ 33,577 $ 31,130 107.9% 
Vehicle operational / lease $ $ $ 7,000 $ $ $ $ $ 7,000 $ 7,000 100.0% 
Professional fees (auditing, membershiJ: $ 18,675 $ 350 $ 100 $ 600 $ 2,000 $ 100 $ 350 $ 22,175 $ 23,075 96.1% 
Data Processing Expenses $ $ 10,320 $ 4,939 $ 28,593 $ 73,401 $ 2,996 $ 11,432 $ 131,681 $ 127,725 103.1% 
Payment of taxes $ $ 30 $ $ 300 $ 4,600 $ $ 150 $ 5,080 $ 5,080 100.0% 
Library programming $ $ 5,350 $ 2,005 $ 7,352 $ 14,600 $ 2,674 $ 6,016 $ 37,997 $ 36,889 103.0% 
Chemung County costs (8&0, vision, e $ $ 600 $ $ 1,300 $ 11 ,500 $ $ 600 $ 14,000 $ 13,000 107.7% 
Capital improvements $ 10,000 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 10,000 $ 25,000 40.0% 
Contingency $ 3,845 $ 3,843 $ 2,228 $ 8,560 $ 28,884 $ 895 $ 4,388 $ 52,643 $ 52,890 99.5% 
Subtotal contractual fees $ 48,847 $ 64,188 $ 33,901 $ 142,452 $ 557,558 $ 15,438 $ 71,545 $ 933,929 $ 910,692 102.6% 

Debt service $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Grand total $ 341,122 $ 238,674 $ 156,817 $ 462,554 $ 2,069,867 $ 61 ,545 $ 235,878 $ 3,566,456 $ 3,449,138 103.4% 

Net $ (0) $ (0) $ 0 $ 93,100 $ (0) $ (0) $ 0 $ 93 ,100 $ 92,100 



The apportionment of Chemung County taxpayer funding of Library District (not including debt service) 

Big Flats Bookmobile 

Administration costs $26,312 $13,156 
Operating costs $222,892 $152,898 

Total cost $249,204 $166,054 

Percentage of cost 8.00% 5.33% 

Total cost of operating eelD neighborhood libraries 
(not including debt service) 

Administrative costs 
Big Flats Library costs 
Bookmobile costs 
Horseheads Free Library costs 
Steele Memorial Library costs 
Van Etten Library costs 
West Elmira Library costs 
Total costs 

$ 341 ,122 
$ 238,674 
$ 156,817 
$ 462,554 
$ 2,069,867 
$ 61,545 
$ 235,878 
$ 3,566,456 

9.6% 
6.7% 
4.4% 

13.0% 
58.0% 

1.7% 
6.6% 

100.0% 

Horseheads Steele VanEtten West Elmira Totals 

$36,048 $148,138 $13,156 $26,312 $263,122 
$424,654 $1,772,237 $57,741 $221,571 $2,851,993 

$460,702 $1,920,375 $70,897 $247,883 $3,115,115 

14.79% 61.65% 2.28% 7.96% 

Costs of Operating the Chemung County Library 
District in 2020 

West Elmira 
Library 

7% 

Van Etten ---..1 
Library costs 

2% 

Steele Memorial 
Library costs 

58% 

Administrative 
costs 

Big Flats Library 
costs 
7% 

\-__ Bookmobile 
costs 
4% 

Horseheads 
Free Library 

costs 
13%, 


	Agenda 2019-07
	Document 2019-37
	Document 2019-38
	Document 2019-39
	Document 2019-40
	Document 2019-41
	Document 2019-42
	2020 CCLD Proposed Budget

